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ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The directors present their statement to the member together with the audited financial statements of ADANI
- GLOBAL PTE LTD (the “company”} for the financiat year ended 31 March 2016.

1. OFPINION OF THE DIRECTORS
In the opinion of the"directors;

(a) the financial statements of the company are drawn up 50 as to give a true and fair view of the
- financial position of the company as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance changes
in equzty and cash flov.rs of the company for the year then ended; and-

(b} at the date of this statement there are reasonab!e grounds to belteve !hat the company will be
able to pay its debts when they fall due. -

2. DIRECTORS
The directors of the company in office at the date of this statement are:

Arup Roy

Prasanna Sundeep {Appointed on 23 March 2016)
Saboo Shrikant Vinod (Appointed on 23 March 2016)
Yuki Tanizaki (Appointed on 19 May 2015)

3. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS
BY MEANS OF ACQU!SIT!ON OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any trme during the financial year was the company a party to any
arrangement whose object are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the company to
acquire benefits by means of the acqu:smon of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other
body corporate .

4. : _DIRECTDRS' INTERESTS. lN SHARES DR DEBENTURES

_The drrectors who held ofﬁce at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share capital of
the company and its related corporations as recorded in the register of directors' shareholdings kept
by the company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companles Act, Chapter 50.
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ADAN{ GLOBAL PTE LTD

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT - cont'd

SHARE OPTION
During the financial year, no option o take up unissued shares of the company was granted.

During the financial year, there were no shares of the company issued by virtue of the exercise of
options o take up unissued shares.

As at the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the company under option.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The independent auditors, Prudential Public Accounting Corporation, Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

of the Board

Ap ......................................

Hirector »

Saboo<Shrikant Vinod
Director

20 MAY 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
ADAN! GLOBAL PTELTD

' Report on the Financlai Staternents

‘We' have auditsd: the accompanymg financial statemments of ADAN! GLOBAL PTE LTD (the “company™)
which comprise the statement of financial position of the company as at 31 March 2016, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows of the company for the year
then ended, and a summary of s;gnlf' cant accounting poi{mes and o{her expianatory mformahon '

Management s Respons.rbr!.rty for the Fmancxal Statements

Management is responsrble for the preparat;on of finaricial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance: with the. provision of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50" (the “Act”y and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards: and for devising and' maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
“sufficient {o provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use
- or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fa[r ﬁnanc;af statements and to maintain accountabzhty of assets

Aud:tors Responsrb.rmy

- Qur responab«kty is to express an 0pl|"|l0l'l on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted
our audit in accordance: with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perforrn the. audit to obtain reasonab!e assurance about whether the

financiai statements are ﬁ'ee from matena[ mtsstatement

An audit invoives perfonmng procedures to obtain audit evidence about amounts: and discldsures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud: or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controis refevant o the. entity's. preparation’ of the
financial statements that give a frue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on. the effectiveness of the. entity's
intemal control. Ar audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounling policies used and the
reasonableness - of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaiuahng the. overall

presentatlon of the ﬁnancnai statements

We bel:eve that the audlt ev;dence we have obtained is sufficient and approprtate to prowde a ba5|s for aur
audltop[mon '

17 Phillip Street, #05-02 Grand Building, Singapore 048695. Tel: 6438 7777/ 6538 7777 Fax: 6533 3227
-Email: office@prudenpractice.com Co. Reg. No. 200402853W  Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT TO THE MEMBER OF
ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD — cont'd

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance, changes in"equity and cash flows of the

company for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act

PRUDENTIAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTING CORPORATION
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND -

. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
SINGAPORE :
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- ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 3t MARCH 2016

ASSETS

Non-turrent assets:

Plant and equipment

Investmant properties
Investment in subsidiaries

Interest in joint venture

Total non-current assets

-Current assets:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments
Totat current assets

Total assets

EQU]TY AND LIABILITIES.
; Equlty

Share capitai

Retained eamings

Total equity

Non-cutrent fiabilities:
Borrowings
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities:
' Borrowmgs current portlon
- Trade and _o_ther_payab!es
Derivative financial instruments
Income tax payables
Total current liabilities

Totat liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

.
o
-
[31]

@)
(9
(10
(1

{12}

{(13)
(14)

(15) -

(19}

{16)

(17)

{17}
(18)
(19)
(23)

2015

uss uss
102,301 81,184
4,201,226 4,281,834
© 43,736,752 43,725,986
3,800,000 3,800,000
51,840,279 51,889,004
15,037,265 39,607,943
2,010,088,119 2,120,346,433
2,580,975 3,727,404
119,199,362 129,364,148

4,155,512 -
2,151,061,233 ~ 2,293,045,928
2,202,901,512 2,344,934,932
27,600,000 27,600,000
882,454,374 793,302,234
910,054,374 820,902,234
581,541 41,778,342
581,541 41,778,342
644,370,987 878,566,790
641,995,905 585,933,305
e 7,343,042
_ 5,898,705 10,411,219

1,292,265,597

1‘482,254,356

1,292,847,138

2,202,901,512

1,524 032 898

2,344,934,932

- The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integrat part of these

financial statements..
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ADANI GLOBAL PTELTD

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

- 2016 2015
Note uss$ uss$

Revenue {20) 3,485,238,954 3,648,449,037
Cost of goods sold {3,347,122,633} {3,438,577,612)
Gross profit 138,116,321 209,871,425
Other income {21) 8,516,885 18,017,290
Marketing and distribution expenses {3,738,796) {3,975,041)
Administrative expenses _ {11,871,099) (9,848,852}
Finance costs (22) {35,184,439) {32,354,509)
Other expenses (2,097,951) (1..029,963)
Profit. béfﬁfe income taﬁ | 93,740,921 .'18.0,680,350
Income tax expense {23) (4,588,731 ) . . {1 0,1.68.,48.5)
Profit for the year : : - (24) 89,.1 52,140 170,511,865
Gther comp_reh'ensive incqrﬁe : - | -. :
Total comprehensive income for the Year 89,152,140 _ 170,511,865

The accompany:ng accountmg policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of these
: ﬁnancua! statements. o -
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AD‘ANl GLOBAL PTELTD
| _..S_"l;'A'_I':E.N.l.E.N.'I'_'_S- OF c'H'A:_qG_E's' IN EQUITY

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Share | Retained . .

Capital ' Earnings . Totat

uss us$ . uss
Balance as at 1 Aprii 2014 27,600,000 622,790,369 - 650,390,369
" Total comprehensive income for the year - 170,511,865 170,511,865
- Balance as at 31 Marqh:20.15 27,600,000 793,302,234 820,902,234
.TOEE:G comprehensi_ve_' _in__comé for the year - 89';152',140 - 89,152,140
‘Balance as at 31 March 2016 27,600,000 882,454,374 -_ 910,054,374

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of these
financiai statements.- ' o
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ADANI GLOBAL PTELTD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustment for.

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment properties
interest expense

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Other current assets

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables

Cash generated fromf{used in) operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated froml(used in) operating
actwmes

Investing activities:

Interest received

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Acquisition of plant and equipment

Increase in net amount due from related parties
Fixed deposit '

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:

Interest paid

Decrease in net amount due from third parties

(Repayment)iproceeds of working capxtal loans-net
Repayment of term foans

Net cash (usec_l in)ffrom ﬂn_ancing activities

Net _'(deeree_se)lin_cre_a_se in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and caeh equivalents at end ofyear - {1 5} '

2016 2015
s$ uss
93,740,921 180,680,350
101,261 109,691
80,608 80,608
35,184,439 32,354,509
(7,626,213) (16,925,723)
121,481,016 196,299,435
24,570,678 (32,241,703)
307,645,760 (349,281,735)
1,146,429 1,430 084
(11,498,554) 4,745 580
56,062,600 48,766,322
499,407,929 (130,273,017)

(9,101,295)

(10,957,266)

490,306,634 (141,230,283}
19,952,026 16,626,931
{10,766) {1,253,203)
(122,378) (10,982)
{225,595,000) (50,658,170)
{16,676,631) (19,402,138)
(232,452,749) (54,698,562)
(35,184,439) (31,809,822)
25,881,741 30,551,758
(185,012,745) 296,608,293
{90,379,859) {90,474 023)
-(234,595,-302) 204,876,204
(25 341 A417) 8,947,359
36, 331 364 27,934005
-10, 039 947 36,881,364

The accompanysng accountlng policies and explanatory notes form an mtegral part of these

financizd qrnh:mpnh




.
 ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2016

These notes form an integral part of and shouid be read in: conjunction with  the: accompanying financial
statements. : :

21

GENERAL-

Adani: Gilobal: Pte Ltd (the “company’) (Registration number: 200003047N) is- a: private limited

~ sompany; which is mcorpcrated and dom:c:led lI1 the Republic of S:ngapore with its pranr.:tpal place of

business and reglstered office at

' 80 Raffles Place #33-20
- UOB Plaza’
" Singapore 048624

. The principal activities of the company are to.carry on' business as general merchants 1mporters and

exporters, commass:on agents and manufacturer's representative.

The ﬁnanciai statements. of the company for the year ended 31 March 2016 were authorised for

-issue in accordance with the directors’ resolution dated 20 May 2016.

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

~ Basis of Accounting

The financia! statements are prepared in accordance. wnth the historicat cost convention, except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the

o Slngapore_Ccmpan:es Act and Smgapore Financial Reporting Standards. (*FRS"} including related

interpretati'cns of FRS'("ENT FRS-“)' promulgated by the Accounting Standards Councif ("ASC“)'

Historical cost is generally based on: the fair value of the conSIderatlon gtven in the exchange for

goods and sewtces o

Fair value is the pnce that wouid be recewed to seltan asset or paid to transfer a I:abxttty in an orderly

' transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is

directly observable or estlmated using another valuation technique. In estlmatmg the fair. value of an

‘assetora ilabthty, the company takes into gccount thie characteristics of the asset or liability which
- market: participants. would take into account when pricing the asset of liability at the measurement
. date.. Fair value for' measurement and/or- disclosure: purposes in these financial. statements is
: :.-.detenmned on'such a basis, except for measurements that have some; stmatantues to fair value but

- are not farr va!ue such as net reailsabie value in FRS 2 or value in uséin FRS 36

I !n addltion for ﬁnancral reportlng purpose fa:r vaiue measurements are categonsed inta Levef 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to:which the inpuis fo the fair value measurements are observable and the
' _5|gnif icance of the |nputs to the fatr value measurement in ats ent;rety whlch are descnbed ;n the 5.

The preparatton of ﬁnanCtal statements in confcrmlty with FRS requ1res management o exercise its

' judgement in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. It also requires the use of

accountmg estimafes. and. assumpttons The areas involving a higher degree: of judgement or
ccmptexnty or areas where assumpttcns and estimates are sugn:f‘ cant to the finaricial statements are

_ dlscfosed in Note 4.
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ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —- cont'd

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies — cont'd
{a) Adopftion of new and revised FRSs and INT FRSs

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except in
the current financial year, the company has adopted all the new ard revised FRSs and INT FRS that
are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015. The
adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements of
the company.

{b) FRSs and INT FRSs issued not vet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRS, INT FRS and
amendments that are refevant to the company were issued but not effective:

Effective date
annual periods

beginning on
Standard Description or after
FRS 1 : Amendments to FRS 1: Disclosure initiafive - 1dan 2016
FRS7 Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative 1Jan 2017
FRS 27 Amendments to FRS 27: Equity Method in Separate ' 1 Jan 2016
: Financial Statements

FRS 16, FRS38 Amendments to FRS 16 & FRS38: Clarificatonof .~ 1 Jan 2016
S Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
FRS 110, FRS 28  Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28; Sale or Confribution i Jan 2016
: : -of Assels between an Investor and its Assocnate ar Joirit’

Venture :
FRS 110, FRS 112, - Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 112 and FRS 28; investment - 1 Jan 2016
FRS28 Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception . : :
FRS 111 Amendments to FRS 111: Acoounhng for Acqms:tlons of 1.Jan 2016
R Interests in Joint Operations ' '
FRS 115 - - Revenue from Contracts with Customers ' 1 Jan 2018
FRS 109 -I—‘tnancua!lnstruments EE ' 1 Jan 2018

(c) Improvements fo FRSs lssued in 2014

: INT FRS and amendments issued in 2014 that are re!evant fo Ihe company were |ssued but not
effectwe are as follows:

-~ Effective of
e ' o SR : ~ annual period
‘Reference Desc"ng'tio o B = beginning on or after -
FRS105 - Amendments fo FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held B Jan_uary_2016
S : R : forSaIe and Dasc:on'unue Operahons G
“FRS 107 - Amendments to FRS 107 Financial instruments S 1 January 2016

D4sclosures Serv;cmg contracts ...

‘FRS19 .Amendrn_ents fo FRS 19: Employee Benefits - ' 1 January 2016 -

~
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ADANI GLOBAL PTELTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —~ CONTINUED: - -

22

{c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT. ACCOUNT!_NG POLICIES ~ cont’d

" Changesin Accounttng Policies cont‘

improvements to FRSs lssued in 2014 — conf'd

" The improvement contains amendments. to numerous accounting standards that resutt in accounting
" changes for presentatton recogrntton or measurement purposes and termsnotogy or editorial

amendments

-' The company expect that the adoption of the above standards :nterpretatrons and tmprovements if
.. applicable; will have: no materiaf |mpact on the fi nanmal statements in the penod of :nmat apptrcatton
: except as descr:bed betow" ' S : _ _

ERS -1 : Presentatlon' of Flnanciat' Statements:. .

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments)

Amendments have been made to the following:

.~ Matenally and aggregation- — An enfity shall not obscure useful information' by. aggregating or
. dlsaggregatmg information and materiality considerations appty fo the pnmary statements notes and
: any spec1ﬁc dlsciosure requrrements it FRSs. - .

Statement of ﬁnancsat posmon and statement of profit and loss and other comprehenslve income -

The lists of fine items to be' presented in these statements can be aggregated or dlsaggregated as
retevant Guidarice on subtotats i these statements has also been included. -~

Presentation of items‘ ot other- comprehensave income ("OCl") arising. from equity-accounted
invesiments — An entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be
presented in aggregate as single ltems based on whether or not it wstl subsequently be

" rectassat' catton to proﬁt or Eoss Co

Entlties have ﬂexrbthty when de5|gn|ng the. structure of the notes and gurdance is rntroduced on how

- to determme a systemahc order oi the notes. -

: Management IS currentty evatuatmg the potenhat tmpact of the appl;catton of these amendments to
N FRS Ton the ﬁnanmat statements of the company in the penod of mttlat apptlcatlon

: Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38

Ctant' catton of Acceptabie Methods of Decrecuatlon and Amortisatton :

The amendments to FRS 16 proh:btt enttties from ustng a revenuebased deprel:latton method for

: ttems ‘of property plant and equtpment ‘The amendmients to FRS 38 infroduce a rebuttable

presumptlon that' revenue is not an appropriate basis for amoriisation ‘of an intang:bte asset. This

. . presumptlon can on!y be rebutted tn the fottowmg two hm!ted c;rcumstances AR

oay when the rntangtbte asset is expressed as a measure of revenue or’ :
. b} when' it can be demonstrated:that revenue and consumption of the economtc benet‘ts of the

intangible asset are hlghty correlated.
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ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

22

it

i)

iv}

23
@

- The F nancral statements of the company are measured and presented in the currency of the primary

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ cont’d

Changes in Accounting Policies — cont'd

Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amonrisation - cont'd

The amendments apply prospectively for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Currently, the Group and the Company uses the straightine method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The directors of
the Group and the Company believe that the straight-line method is the most appropriate methed to
reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly, the
directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to FRS 18 and
FRS 38 will have a material impact on the Group's and the Company's financial statements,

FRS 109 — Financial Instrumentis

FRS 109 was introduced to replace FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
FRS 108 changes the classification -and measurement - requirements for financial ' assets .and
fiabilities, and also introduces a three-stage impairment model that will impair financial assets based
on expected losses regardless of whether objective indicators of impairment have oceurred. This
standard also provides a simplified ‘hedge accounting model that will align more closely with the
entity’s risk management strategies. The standard is effective for annul period beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The Company is cumrently deten'nin_ing the impact of this standard.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts wrth Customers .

' FRS 11 5 sets out the requrrements for recognrsrng revenue that apphes fo- ali contracts with

customers (except for contract that are within the scope of the standards on leases, insurance
contracts and financial instruments). FRS 115 replaces the previous revenue Standards FRS 18
Revenue and FRS 11 Constrizction Contracts, and the related interpretations on revenue recognition; -
INT FRS 115 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate; INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from
Customers; and INT-FRS 31 Revenue — Barter Transaclions Involving Advertising ‘Services. -1t is
effective for annual penods ‘beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier appl;catson is permrtted
The Company 15 currentiy determlmng the 1mpact ‘of this slandard

Functronai and Foreiqn 0urrencv

Functrona[ and nresentation currencv

economic environment in which the entity operates (its “functional currency”). A!though the company
is ‘domiciled’ in Srngapore most of the company's transactions are denominated in United States
dollar {“US$") and the seliing prices for the company’s products are sensitive to'movements in the

foreign exchange rate with the US$: The ﬁnancral statements are presented in Unrted States dollar,

which is the functional currency of lhe company




13-

- ADANIGLOBAL PTELTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_-— CONTINUED .

2.3

{b)

2.4,

@

()

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU.NTING POLICIES — cont’d

Functlionai and Foreiqn Currencv —cont'd

Foren:tn currencv transacﬂons

.- _ Transactlons in. forelgn currenCIes have been trans[ated into US$ at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and hablhtles in foreign currencies: at the end of the

reporting period have been converted to USS at the rates of exchange approxnmatmg those ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets. and liabilities measured. at cost in foreign
currencies are fransiated to: US$ using the fore:gn exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair valie in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Transtation difference on’non-monetary items,
such as equ:ty instruments: classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
recogmsed as part of the faif value gainor foss. Translation differences on nan- monetary itemns, such
ds equity instruments: classified as ‘available-for-sale financial assets, are ‘included in' reserve in
equity. All realised and unrea{:sed foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Plant and Eguigment .

Measurement o

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,

. Com onent of cost

The cost of an iterm of ptant and eqmpment includes its purchase pnce and any cost that is directly

: atfributable to bnngmg the asset to the' location and’ condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management The projected cost of dismantlement, remaval or
restoration: is- also included as. part of the cost of piant and eqmpment if. the obllgatlon for' the

' d:smantlement removal or restoratson is incurred asa consequence of acquiring or usmg the asset,

3 'Degre(:latio

Deprec:atlon is caleulated on the stranght-!me method and to write off the cost of the assets over their
est:matecf useful hvas as foi!ows B : : L

_Computer & office equipment 3 years:
Fumit'u’re ancf ﬁtﬁngf . : 3 years .

o ._Fuity depreczated assets are reta:ned in the ﬁnancuai statements unt:i they are no longer in use and
. 'no. further charge for depremation is made in respect of these assels. Useful lives, residual vaiues

and’ deprectatlon methods are reviewed annually. Accelerated deprec;atson is prowded when the
usefui !n‘e of the asset become shorter than th at m:baily expected.

. Subsequent-exnendlture.

- Subsequent expenditure refating to plant and equipment that has aiready been recognised is added

to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probabile that future economic benefits associated

“with' the  ftern’ will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. Other

o subsequent expenditure is ‘recognised as repalr and rnamtenance expense in prof tor ioss during the
" financial penod irf which it is incurred. : .
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ADAN! GLOBAL PTELTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

2.

2.4,

(e)

2.5

(a)

{b)

()

(d)

(@)

(N

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont'd

Plant and Egquipment — cont'd

Disposai

On disposal of an item of plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount is taken to profit or loss. Any amount in revaluation reserve relating to that asset
is transferred to retained earnings directly.

investment Property

Measurement

Investment property is a property which is held on long-term basis for ils investment potential and
rental income. investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairmment losses, if any.

Component of costs

The cost of the investment property includes its purchase price and any cost that is directly
atiributable fo the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner mtended by
management

Degreciation

Depreciation is calculated using straight fine method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the
estimated useful lives of 60 years. The residual value, useful lives and depreciation method of
:nvestment property are revrewed and adjusted as appropr:ate at the end of each reportrng period.
The effects of any rev:sron are mctuded in profit or !oss when the changes arise. -

Subseduant ex‘oendrture

Subsequent expenditure relating fo investment property that has aiready been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with thé item will flow fo the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Other
subsequent expenditiire is recognised as repair and ma:ntenance expense rn “profit or foss during the
financiat penod in wh:ch it is incumed.

Derecognition -

1nvestment property is derecognised when either it has been disposed of or when the investment
property is- pennanently withdrawn from use ‘and no future economic benefit is expected from its
dlsposa! Any gains or losses on the retirement or drsposat of an anvestment property are recognrsed
in proﬁt or toss in the year of retrrement or drsposat N . .

Transfers

Transfers to or from rnvestment property are made when and only when there is a change in use.

_ Fora transfer frorn rnvestment property to owner occupred property the deemed cost for subsequent
.. accounting is the- carrying amount at the date of change in use. For afransfer from owner occupied
-_property to rnvestment property the property is aocounted for in. accordance wrth the eccounhng :

POt

change in use.
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2.6.

27.

- 2.8,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT!_NG POLICIES - cont’d

investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an entity controled by the company. The company: controls- an- investee when it is
expased, or has rights, to variable returns from its 1nvolvement with the lnvestee and has the ability

to affect those returns through zts power over the snvestee

tnvestment tn subs;d:anes are camed at cost [ess any lmpalrrnent in net recoverab!e value that has
been: recognised: in profit or loss: On disposal of such rnvestment, the difference between the net
dlsposat proceed and the;r carrylng amounts is mcluded in proﬁt or loss.

These ﬁnanc:a[ statements are the separate f nanmaf staternents of the company
The_ company is exempted from the reqwrement to prepare consolidated financial statements as the
company itself is the wholly owned subsidiary of another entity and the ultimate holding company

produ_ces_' the consolidated financial statements which are avaitable for: public use.

Interest in Joint Venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic
activity: that is sub;ect to joint control, where the strategic financial and operating decisions refating to
the activity require the unanimous: consent of the parhes shanng controt interest in joint venture is
stated at costs less any rmpatrment loss. :

The equrty method has not been adopted for the interest in joint. venture '|n the company’s financia
statements as the ultimate holding company produces consolsdated fnancial statements which are

availabie for pubhc use.

lmpainnent of Non-Financial Assets-

At the end of each reporting.pertod the company reviews the carrying arnounts of its. non-financiat
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impaarment
loss: if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to

_ _determtne the: extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate: the recoverable

amount of an individual' asset, the company- estimates the recoverab!e amount of the cash-
generat:ng umt to whrch the asset be!ongs : :

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vaiue inuse. in assessing vaiue

inuse; the estimated future cash flows: are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
“rate that reﬂects current market assessments of the ttme value of money and the risks specific to the
: asSet

if the- recoverab!e amount of an. asset {or cash-generatang unit} is estlmated to be less than its
- carrying-amount;. the carrying: amount of the asset {or. cash-generatmg unity is' reduced: to its
. recoverable amount.-An impairment loss is’ recogntsed immediately- i profit or foss, unless the

relevant asset is carried ata revalued amount in wh!ch case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluat:on decrease : : .

Where an amparnnent loss- subsequently’ reverses,- the. carrying: amount. of the asset (or cash-
generating’ unit). is mcreased to. the revised. estimate of its recoverable amount, but: so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or foss, unless the relevant asset is
camied. at a revaiued amount, in. which case the reversal of the impairment loss is freated as a
revaluation increase.
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29.

{a)

(GH

(©

{d)

2.10.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ cont'd

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivabie for the sale of goods
and the rendering of services in the ordinary course of the company's activities. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer retums, rebates and other similar atfowances.

The company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue and related cost can be refiably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and speciflc criteria have
been met for each of the company's activities as described below: :

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

- the company retains neither continuing ‘managenal involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold:

- the amount of revenue can be measured relrably, S

- it is probable that the econocmic benefils associated wrth the transaction will flow to the

company; and
- thecosts mcurred or to be mcurred in respect of the transaction cap be measured refiably.

interest income

!nterest income is accrued on a time basijs, by reference to the pnncapal outstanding and at the
effectwe rate appilcable

Rental income -

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease
terr. : S . : : : _ A

Ensurance claim

'Revenue from insurance cla;m is recogmsed when an offer of setl!ement recewed from the insurer

and the claim arnount is wr‘tual!y certain.

Govemment Grants

'Grants from the government are recognrsed as a recervabie at therr fair value when there is

reasonab!e assurance - that the grent will be- reoewed and me oompany will comply with all the
attached condrtlons .

Government grants reoewable are reoogmsed as income over the penods necessary to match them
with the related costs ‘which they are intended to compensate ona systemetlc bes:s Govemment .
grants re!etmg to expenses are shown separately as other lnoome :
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2.11.

(a)

(o)

212,

- 213,

b)
'-._-Lease of :nvestrnent property where the company. retains. substantially all Asks. and- rewards
~incidental to ‘ownership is classified as an operating lease. Rental income from operating fease (net

214,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —cont'd

Employee Benefits

' Defined contribution plan

Payments to defi ned contribution: plan {including state - managed retirement benefit schemes such

- as Srngapore Central Provtdent Fur:ds) are charged as an expense as they fatl due.

Emgtoyee leave entrtlement B

Empioyee entltlements to annuai Eeave are recognlsed when they accrue o emptoyees A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by the employees

up to the end of the reportrng penod

. Borrowmg Cost

Borrowmg costs: are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are

: d:rect!y attributable -to- the-. acquisition, - of a qualifying - asset Capitalisation’ of borrowing cost

commences, when the- activities to prepare the asset for ifs intended use. and- expenditure and

. borrowing costs: are being incurred Borrowings costs are capltahsed until the -assets are ready for

their |ntended use.

Og‘eratmg Lease

The deten'runatron of. whether an arrangement is, or contalns a tease is based on the substance of

the arrangement at inception date whether fulfilment of the arraingement is dependent on the use ofa
specrﬁc assetor assets orthe arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. '

Where the company is the Iessee'

When the;cornpany_has the_ use of assete under operating leases, payments made under the leases

are recognised in’ profit or loss on' a straight-ine basis: over the term of the lease. Lease incentives

received are recognised' in proﬁt:or {ossas an tntegra! part of the fotai !ease paym'ente made.

Contrngent rents are recognlsed as an expense in proﬁt or !oss when |ncun'ed

: Where the comnanv is the Iessor :

of any. incentives given to the Iessee) is recogntsed in prof' it or. foss on'a stl‘aaght—hne bas:s over the

: tease term

imtiat direct: costs :ncurred by the company in negotaatsng and- arrangrng opereting feasee are

'recogmsed as an: expense in: proﬁt or loss over the Iease ferm on the same; basrs as the lease

II"ICOI'TIE

. Contln'gent rents are recdgnised as income in profit or foss when earned.

income Taxes - .

Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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2.14.

(a)

(b}

{c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont'd
Income Taxes - contd
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of comprehensive income hecause it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax
deductibie. The company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax law) that have
been enacted in country where the company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Defeired tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilittes are recognised for aif .temporary differences except where the deferred tax
fability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at that time of the transaction, affects nerther aocountsng proﬁt nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductrble temporary drfferences carry forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses can be utitised except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arise from the initial recognition of an asset or fiability in a transactlon and at the time of
transaction affects nerther the accounting profit nor taxabIe profit. - ' o

The carrying amount of a deferred tax_asset 1s_rev1ewed -at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
aliow ‘all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probabie that future taxable proﬁt will alfow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. :

Deferred tax assets and t:abslrttes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantlve!y enacted at the end of the reporttng penod :

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax IIablEItEeS are offsetif a legaity enfon:eab]e nght exists to set off
current tax-assets: against current tax fiabilities and the deferred taxes retate to the same taxabte
enttty and the same taxatton authority. - : o

Goods and services tax (“GST") _

Revenues expenses and assets are recognrsed net of the: amount of GST except where the GST
incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognrsed as pait of the cost of aoqurs:t:on of the asset or as part of the expense
item as apptncable and recewable and payables that are stated vnth ﬂ-ne amount of GST rnctuded

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authonty is lI‘IC!UdEd as part of

recervabtes or payables in the statement of ﬁnancral posmon
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2.16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - cont'd
Related Parties

A refated party isa person or an entity related to the company and is further def ned as follows:

_A person or & close member of that person 's famlty Is related to the company if that person:

(I) -has controt or Jomt controt aver the company,

(i) has significant influence over the company:; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnet of the company or of a parent of the comnpany.

An entrty is retated to the group and the company tf the fottowrng COI"lditiOI'IS app!res

iy - the: entlty and the company are. members of the same group whrch means that each parent,
: subsldtary and felfow subsidiary; . -
(i) one enfity is an associate or Joint venture of the other entrty oran assomate or jO!I'It venture of a
- member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member;

- {ifiy . both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv}  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other ent!ty isan assocrate of the third entity;

© (v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the company

or an’ entity related to the company. If the company is rtsetf such a plan the sponsorsng
employers are also related to the company;

(vi) - the entity is controfled or jointly controlied by a person identifi ed in{@yor ..

(viiy a person identified in (a) (i} has significant influence over the entity or is @ member of the key
management personnei of the entity or of a parent of the entity

- {viii} the entity, or. any member of the company of which it is a: part, provides key management

personnet serwoes to the company orto the parent of the company

Close members of the family of 2 person are those family memnbers who. may be expected to
lnﬂuence orbe rnﬂuenced by, that person in their deahngs W|th the entaty and tnc!ude

(a} that person ] chlfdren and spouse or domestsc partner :

> {b) ~ children of that person’s spouse or domestic pariner; and

{c}  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner. - -

Key rnanagement personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlting the actwrtles of the entity, dlrectly or 1nd|recuy, mciudlng any director of the
company.

. :Related parly transactions and. outstanding balances - disclosed: in the t" nanc;al statement are in
: aocordance with the above definition as: per FRS24. oo o

: Prowsron

Prowsrons are recogmsed when the- company has a present obligation (tegai or consfructive) as a

- result of a pastevent, it is probable that the' company will be requrred to: settie the oblrgatron and a
. reilable estlmate can be made of the amount of the obligation. - :

: The amount recognrsed asa prov;slon is the best estimate of the consideration requrred to seflle the
present obfigation at the' end: of the reporting period, faking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding the obligation: Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settie
the present obligation; its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
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2.18.

2.17.

2.18,

3.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ cont'd

Provision ~ cont'd

When some or all of the economic benefits required fo settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third parly, the receivable is recognised as an asset if i is virtually certain that

reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A contingent fiability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not
whoily within the control of the company. it can afso be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. -

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
changes in the ‘probabiiity of an outflow occur so that the outﬁow is probable it will then be
recognssed asa prowsron

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertam events notwholiy within the
control of the company.’ :

Contingent assets are not recognised buf are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
an inﬂow of economic beneﬁts is probable. When inflow is virtually cerlain, an asset is recognised.

Event after the Regortlng Period

Events after the reporting penod that provide addltrona! mformat:on about the companys position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting everits and are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial_asse_ts and_ﬁnahciai'ltabilities are reccgnised on the company's statement -of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Effective interest method

_The: effective interest method iis a method of catculatlng the amortised costof a. ﬁnancral mstrument
- and of allocating interest income: or expense over:the. relevant penod ‘The effective:interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (lncludlng all fees on
pomts pald or recewed that form an mtegra! part of the effectwe 1nterest rate transaction costs and

appropnate a shorter penod Income and expense is: recognrsed on'an effectlve lnterest b_as;s for

-debt instruments other than those" f nanmai instruments at falr vatue through proﬁt or- ioss
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3.

3.2,

@

O

' ':'Trade recewables anns and recewab!es that have ﬁxed or determmable payments that are not
" “quoted in an active market aré classified as loans and receivables. Trade and other receivables,
 bank balances and cash are c!assrﬁed wathin loans and receivables on the statement of financial

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd
Financiai Assets

All ﬁnanc|ai assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date: basis where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms requrre delwery of the investment within the

. timeframe established” by the market concerned, and are: rnlhaity measured " at’ fair value plus

transaction costs, except for those financial assets ciassuﬁed as at falr value through profi t or loss

whlch are maha[ly measured at Farr value. -

Fmanclai assets in these ﬁnancaat statements are classaﬁed anto ioans and receivables and financial

assets at fair value through profit or foss. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of

- ﬁnanc:ai assets and determmed at the tirne of rmtlal recogn:tlon

F:nanciat assets at farr vatue throuqh profit ot !oss

Frnancral assets at fair value through profit. or loss include ﬁnancraE assets he!d for trading and

financiat assets desrgnated upon initiat recogn:tlon at fair value through profit or foss. Financial assets

- are classified as held for trading if they aré acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
" near term. This category includes’ denvatwe finaricial instruments entered into by the company that
are not designated ss hedgmg instriuments in hedge refationships as defined by FRS 39. Derivatives,

including separated embedded derivatives are aiso. class;fied as: held for trading unless they are
des:gnated as effective hedging mstmments '

Subsequent to initiat recognition, ﬁnanclal assgets at fair value through proﬁt or {oss are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses ans:ng from changes in fair values of the finaricial assets are
recognlsed in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on ﬁnanc:al assets at fair va!ue through profit or Ioss
rncIude exchange dtfferences ' AR .

Denvatwes embedded in host confracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not ciosely related to those of the host

contracts and the host contracts are not hetd for trading or designated at fair value through profit or

' loss. These smbedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss. Reassessment’ only occurs: if there is a change in the terms of the contract that

'srgmﬁcant!y modrf es the cash ﬂows that would othewvsse be required.

The company uses derwat:ve ﬁnancrai mstruments including forward excha’n’ge contract and

* futures commadities contracts to manage the financial nsks ansmg from the bus:ness activities and

the fi nancrng of those actwrhes

'Loans and recewab!es S

posrhon
{i) Trade and other recewabies

Trade and other recetvabfes are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
~ amortised cost using.the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
~for :mparrment of trade and otheér receivables is established when there is objective evidence
* that the company will riot be able to collect alf amounts due according to the ongrnal terms of the

receivables.
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3.2

{a)

{b)

{c)

3.3

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd

Financial Asseis —cont'd

Loans and receivables - cont'd

{) Trade and other receivables — cont'd
The amount of the alfowance is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The amount of the alfowance is recognised in profit or loss.

For loans that are with rer:ourse to the lender, the proceeds from the bills discounting of the
company’s trade receivables has been accounted for as collateralised borrowing.

{f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and demand deposits with banks with
original maturity within 3 months and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an ms:gnlﬁcant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the company’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

Fmanc;al assets are assessed for indicators of lmpairment at the ‘end of each Teporting period.
Financial assets are tmpalred where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estlmated future cash ﬂows d:scounted at the onglnal effectwe mterest rate '

The carrymg amount of the fi nanmal asset is reduced by the 1mparrment loss directty for al financial
assets with the exception of trade and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade and other receivable are uncollectible, it is
written off against the’ altowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amotints prevrousty written off
are ‘credited to proﬁt or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the altowance account are
reoognrsed in prof t or loss.

Derecognltlon of ﬁnancual asset

't'he cornpany derecognises a ﬁnancual asset oniy when the contraotua! rights to the cash flows from

the asset expire, or its transfers the Fnancual asset and substantlaily all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another entity. If the company neither transfers nor retains substant:aily all

the risks and rewards " of - oWnershlp and continues to - oontro! the transferred asset, the ‘company
' reoogmses its retained interest in.the’ asset and an associated tlabmty for amounts it may have to

pay: If the company reta:ns substantsa!ly ‘all the risks ‘and rewards of ownershlp ‘of & transferred
financial asset, the company continues to ‘recognise ‘the ﬁnancnal asset and also reoogn:ses a
collaterahsed borrowmg for the proceeds recewed . .

Equ:tv { nstrument and Financral Lial_:nhtles

_Equity instruments issued by the company and finaricial fiabilities are cléssified according to the

.substanceiof.the- contractua! anangements—enterad mto and- thedeﬁmtren of an equrtwnstrumentand

a Fnanc:al liabthty
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3.

3.3

(a)

(o)

FINANCIAL !NSTRUMENTS - cont’d.

Equ

Equity fnstrument and Flnanmai Llabillhe —cont'd

rnstruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company
after deducting alf of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of drrect |ssue cost

- Flnanmat habiiltles

Financial liabifities are recognised: on the statement of financial position when the Company becomes
a party fo the contractual provision for the financial instant The measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as either ﬁnancra! habmtres “at farr value through profit or loss™ or

@

(;i_)_

. other fi nancral tlaba[mes at amomsed costs

) Frnanc:ai !tabairtres at amortfsed cost

F|nanc_iai Irab;tltles are initially recognised at value plus- directly attributable costs and
subsequéntly measured. at amortised cost using the effective interest rate miethod. Gains and
losses are recognised in: profit or loss when the: liabilities are’ derecognised, and through the
amartisation prbcess Financial liabilities at amortised cost are classified within “trade and other
payabies and "borrowrng and “trust recerpts on the statement of fi nanclat posrtuon

Trade and other gayable

Ftnancsal !|abu!|tres lnc{ude trade and other payables. Trade and other payables are initially

“measured. at’ fair vaiue,. and subsequent[y measured at amort:sed cost, usang the effective

tnterest method.

Terrn loan and short-term borrowings from financial institutions

- Term. loan and short-term: borrowings from finanicial institutions are initially. recognised at fair

value (net of transaction: costs) and subsequently canied at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs}) and the redemption value is recognised in the
incore statement. over the- penod of the term foan, trust rece:pts and brils payabte usmg the

eﬁeclwe rn{erest method

' 'Ten'n loans which are- due to be settied wrthrn tweive months after the end of the reporting

period; are mcluded in current liability in the statement of fi nancral pos:t:on Other term loans due
to be settied more than twelve’ months after the end of the reporting penod are i non-current
portton of term !oan :n the statement of fi nanctat posmon ' .

F:nanmaf Iiabltlties at fa!r vatue throuqh Drot' t or !oss

: F:nancral Irabrhtaes at farr vaiue through proﬁt or loss rnclude financial liabilities held for trading

and finanicial iabilities designated upon initial’ recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the' purpose of selling
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated

. embedded. derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as

effectwe hedging rnstruments
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd

Equity Instrument and Financial Liabilities - cont'd

Financiaj liabilities

(i} Financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — cont'd

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial labilities at fair vaiue through profit or toss are
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
liabilities are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Derivative Financial Insfruments

Derivative financial instruments including commodity swap contracts, foreign exchange
forward contracts and resettable prepaid commodity price swap are used to manage exposure
to commodity price, foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from operating and
ﬁnanc:ng actwltles

Derivative ﬂnanmai 1nstruments are recogn:zed at falr value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured fo their fair value at the end of each reporting
penod The result:ng gain or 1oss is recognlsed in prof torloss ummed:ately

The fasr value of commodlty swap contracts and fore:gn exchange forward contracts are
based on fisted market price at the commodity exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

A derivative is presented -as a non-current asset or.a non-current'liability if the remaining

maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivalives are presented as current assets or current fiability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial Ilabnlity is derecogntsed when the oblsgation under the habflity is dlscharged or cancelled
or explred

.Where an, exlstlng financial izabmty is replaced by another from the same Eender on substantiafly

different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially . modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original habihty and the recognltlon of a new habn![ty,
and the dli’ference in the respectwe carrylng amounts is recogmsed in proﬁt or {oss

Offsehan of Ftnancual Assets and F[nanc;lal Liabliltles

Financial assets and fi nancnal ||ab|ilt|es are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of

financial pOSIUOI‘I when the company has: a iegaliy enforceable right to set off the recogmsed amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle ‘the fiability
simultaneously. A right to set-off must be available today rather than belng contmgent on' a future -
event and must be exercisable by any of the ‘Eounterparties, both m ‘the normal course of bus:ness

-and i :n the event of default. insolvency or bankruptcy
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CR%TICAL JUDGEMENTS' AS.SUMPTIONS' AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

in the-application of the company’s acoountlng policies; which are descnbed in Note 2 to the financial

' statements, management is. required to' make judgements, estimates and assumptrons about the
- carrying. amounts. of assets and liabilities that are not: readily apparent: from other sources. The

estimates and assoctated assumptlons are based on historical experience and other factors that are

consadered to be’ relevant. Actua! resutts may d:ffer from these est:mates

The esﬂmates and underlying assumptrons are reviewed on an- ongolng basns Revisions to
accounting estimates are recogmsed in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the penod of the revision. and future pérods if the rewsron affects both

current and future penods

"Cnttca[-Judgments in Applying the Company's Accounting Policies

: Income taxes

Ssgnlt‘ cant 3udgment is: mvo[ved in. determrmng the prowsmn for income taxes. There are certain
fransactions and computations including capital alfowances and deductibility of certain expenses

for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
company. recognises ilabxhties for expected tax issues based on estlmates of whether additional

taxes wsit be due

Where the finat tax outcome of these matters is different from the amcunts that were initially
recognised, such differences witl impact the income tax and deferred tax pravisions in the period in

. whtch such determination is made

C .The carrymg amount of the companys tax payabtes are drsciosed in Note 23 t0 the financial
'statements e . : :

- Determmatlon of funcnonai currency

The company measures fore:gn currency transactlons in the functional currency of the company. In

determining the functional; currency. of the company, judgement is required to determine the currency

- that mainly influencas sales’ prices for goods and services and of the country whose competitive
forces and regu!at:ons mainly determine the sales price of its gaods and services: The funictional

currency of the company is determined based on management's assessment of the econamic
enwronment in which the company operates and the company 'S process of determmrng sales prices.

- Revenue dro g entatlon L

o For the saie of coat the company assesses lts safes arrangements to determme rf lt acls as a

' principal or an agent I determsmng whether the company: acts as a pnnclpal the company
. considers factors “such’ as if the ‘company. Has pnmary respons:brhty for provrdmg e 'goods or
- services 6 the customer, bears mventory risks before of afler the-customer order during shtpp:ng or

on. return; has latitude in estab!rshmg prices either directly or mdarect{y, and bears the customer’s

credit nsks for the amount recelvab[e from ihe customers

Th_e_c':ompany' has.deter'mrned, based on an eva!uaﬂon of the terms and conditions: of the sales
arrangements, that the company acts as a principal and so accounts- the revenue. as- gross
presentation in the statement of profit or loss. and other comprehensive income.- The company's
revenue from the saie of coal products is d:sclosed in Note 20 to the ﬁnancua! statements.



- 76 -

ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

4.2

(@

(b)

)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES - cont'd

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

The key assumptions concerhing the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
cafrying amounts of assets and liabifities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Impairment of plant and eguipment and investment properties

The company reviews the carrying amounts of the plant and equipment and investment properties
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the assels’ recoverable amount or value in use is estimated.
Determining the value in use of plant and equipment and investment properties, which require the
determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and uitimate
disposition of such assets, require the company to make estimates and assumptions that can
matenally affect the financial statements. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material
adverse impact on the company's fi nanaai condition and results of operations, .

The carrying amount of the company's plant .and equ:pment and investment properties are
disclosed in Note 8 and Note 9 to the ﬁnancra] statements

Depreciation of plant and equmment and mvestment propemes '

Plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives after taking into account the estimated residual value. The company reviews
the estimated usefut lives of the assets regularly based on the factors that include asset utilisation,
internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmenta! and anficipated use of the assets
tempered by related industry benchmark .information in ‘order to. determine the amount of
depreciation expense o be recorded durmg any reportlng period. ‘Changes in the expected level of
use of the assets ‘and the ‘company's historical experience with similar assets after taking into
account anticipated technological changes could impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of the assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. Any changes in the
economic useful lwes cou!d lmpact the deprec:a’non charges and consequentiy affect the company 5
result. '

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

The company follows the guidance of FRS 36 in determining the recoverability of its investments in
subsidiaries. This requires assessment as to whether the carrying values of its investment can be
supported by the net present values of future cash flows derived from such investment using cash
flow.projections  which "have been discourted at an appropnate rate. This determination requires
significanit 5udgement The company determmes forecasts of future cash flows based on its estimates
of futire revenues and opeérating expenses:using hlstoncat ang: mdustry trends general market
cond:tsons forecasts and other avarlable information..- . N

The carry:ng amount of snvestment in 5ubs:d|anes are dlsclosed in Note- 10 to the Fnanc;a!
statements .
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS; ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

Critical Judqments in Appling the Companv’s'Aocountinq Policies — cont'd

: Alfowance fcr dcubttu} debts

An al[owance for doubtfut debts accounts for estimated ioss resultrng from the subsequent inability
- of the customers to make required payments. If the financial conditions of the customers were to
- deteriorate, resuitmg in an impairment of their abifity to make payments, additional allowances may

be: required in future periods. Management specifically analyses accounts réceivables and
analyses historical bad  debts, customer concentrations, cusfomer: credit worthiness, current
econornic frends and changes in the customer payment terms when” makrng ‘a judgment to

_ evaluate the, adequacy of the aliowance for doublful debts. The carrying amount of trade
receivable incilided in the statement of financial position are disctosed m Note 1 3.1o the f' nancraE

K statements

imgalrment of other current assets

The companys management reviews other current assets on a regular basis to determine if any
provision for impairment is- necessary. The impairment. loss' on deposrts and advance with
suppliers. is established. when there is evidence that the company will not'be: able to collect all

‘amounts. due: accordmg to the orginal terms’ of purchase of goods or to receive the services

according to the original terms of contracts. Significant financial difficulties of the depasit holder and
supplier,- probability that the deposit holder and suppfier will enter in to bankmptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or definquency in payments are considered indicators that the deposits
and advance with supplier are impaired. Management reassesses the :mpa:rment of deposits and

g advance with’ supp!:ers atthe end of the repomng pertod

mpa :rment of it nanc;ai assets

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,

- the company considers factors such as the probabrirty of insoivency or slgnrﬁcant ﬁnancra! drfﬁcuihes
of the debtor and defau[t or 5|gnrt” cant detay in payments . A

When there is objectrve evzdence of ;mpairment the' amount and tlmrng of future cash flow are

' estrmated hased onh h!stoncat loss experience for assets with similar credit risk charactenstrcs The
. cartying amounit of the ﬁnanclal assets at the end of the reportmg period is drsc[osed in various notes

to the ﬁnancral statements

b F’rovrsrons o

Prowsrons are recogmzed in accordance with the accountung pohcy in Note 2.10; To determine

'whether it is. probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seltle the: obhgatron and a
- reliable estimate of the amount can be made; the company takes into consideration factors siich as
" the existence  of [egallconﬂ’actual agreements, past htstoncal expenence external. adv:sors

assessments and other availabie mfon'nation

Contlnqent liabilities

: Determination: of the treatment of contingent liabilities in the financial statements is based on

management's view of the expected outcome of the applicable contingency. To determine whether
there is- objective evidence of contingent #iability, the management considers factors such as
probability of cccurence oF non-occurrence of uncertain future events and also consults a legal
counsel of matters related to fitigations.
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5.2,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial Habilifies included in the statement of
financial position, the categories and the headings in which they are included are as follows:

2016 2015
uss uss
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables:
- Trade and other receivables 1,835,911,656 2,077,376,153
- Cash and cash equivalents 119,199,362 129,364,148
Fair value through profit or loss:
- Denvative financial instruments 4,155,612 -
1,959,266,530 2.206,740,301
Financial liabitities:
At amertised cosis: _
- Trade and other payables 640,467,306 - 507,828,499
- Borrowmgs . L ) 644,952,528 920,345,132
Fair value through profit or loss: Y S o '
- Derivative financial instruments - 7,343,042
1,285,419,834 1435,516,673

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

Financiat Risk Manadement Poiicies and Ob}ectives

The company is exposed ‘o ﬁnanc.iat nsks arising “from its. operatlons and ‘the use of finaricial
instruments. The company's overall nisk management’ pohcy seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial perfonnance of the company. The management meet pericdically to analyse,
formulate and monitor the specific risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk, ‘market risk (including foreign
currency tisk, interest rate risk, ‘and commodity price risk), and cash flow interest rate risk, and
belicve that the ﬁnanc:a] risks assmtated with these financial mstruments are manageabEe

The foHowang sections provide the company’s exposure to the above mentroned fi nanc;ai nsks and
the ob;echves pottmes and processes for the management of these risks. :

There has been no change to the company’s exposure to these fi nanc:lal nsks or the manner in whlch

' at manages measures the nsk
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' FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FINANCIAL RiSKS MANAGEMENT AND CAPiTAL MANAGEMENT

~ cont'd

Financial Risk Management Policies and Obijectives — contd
Credit nisk

Credit risk refers to risk' that counterparty will default on its contractual ebfigations to repay

-arnounts owing to the company resulting in-a loss: to the. company. The company’s exposure to
credit risk arises primarily from its trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

(i} - Trade and other receivables

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables: is fimited due to the large number

- of customers:except. as - disclosed in Note - 13. The: corhpany 'perfon'ns on-going - credit
- evaluations: of - its customers . and generai!y do not require - collateral. When the: company
becomes. aware of a customer's: inability to meet its obi:gahons such' as.in- the case of
bankruptcy fi iling or deterioration in the customer's financial condition, the' company records a
specific allowance o reduce the. related receivable to: the: amount the company reasonably

- believes ' is: collectlbie The ‘company  also- records allowances. for bad debt for all other
" customers: based on a.variety of factors including the length of time the receivables are past
" due, the' financial : condition- of the customer,. macroeconomic - conditions  and  historical
experience. The company maintains alfowances for potentlai credit !osses and such losses have

- been within management’s expectations. - . :

(i} Cash.and cash equivalents.

The company’s cash and bank balances as detailed in Note. 15 to the financial statements, are
held in major financial institutions which are: regulated and located: in-Singapore, india  and
Dubai, which the management believes are of high credit quality. The management does not
“expect any lossés: anising from non-performance by these counterparties. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the company’s operations. Alf financial transactions with
the banks are'governed by banking facilities duly accepted with Board of Directors” resolutions,
with bankmg mandates, which define the permitied ﬁnancaai instruments and fatilities limits, aff

- of which - are approved by the Board of Dlrectors All- financial transactrons requrre dual
ssgnatones :

Fmancrai as.sets that are nen‘her past due nor rmparred

o T{ade and other rec:ewabies that are nelther past due nor impaired are with credrtworﬂw debtors

* - with good credit record with the’ company. Cash and short-term deposits that are neither past due

. nor. impaired are placed with or entered into with ‘reputable financial instititions  with hrgh credit
_ratangs assrgned by mternatlonat creciut—ratmg agencres and no h|story of default

. Fmancrai assets that are past due and/or rmparred

There is'no other class of fi nancraf assets: that is- past due andfor rmpa1red except for frade
recewabies :

'M_a_r_k_ei__ns_rs

: Market risk exposures are measured us:ng sensrt:vnty ana!ysrs ;ndccated below:
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT AND CAPRITAL MANAGEMENT
-~ cont'd

Financiai Risk Management Policies and Ohjectives - cont'd

Market risk — cont'd
interest rate nsk

Interest rate risk arises from the potential change in interest rate that may have an adverse effect on
the company’s resuits in the current reporting period and in future years,

The company is exposed fo interest rate risk associated with overdrafts, long-term foans, working
and bank capital loans. The exposure fo interest rate risk is monitored on a regular basis to ensure
that the bank borrowings are maintained at favourable interest rafes. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. Management befieves
that “interest rate risk .is ‘manageable; hence the company does not use -derivalive financial
instruments o mlhgate this risk.

The company is a!so exposed to interest rate risk associaied with cash management activities
whereby excess fund are placed with financial instifutions and are subjected to changes in basis of
prime intefest rate as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. The objective of interest rate
risk management is to manage and controf interest rate risk exposure within acceptable parameters
while Optimrsmg the retum on risk. With the ‘current interest rate level, the directors of the company
do not expect any future variations in the rnterest rates to have a srgnrf icant rmpact on the net prof t

The oompany s exposure to interest rate on financial assets and IrabiErhes are detarled in the fiquidity
risk sectson of this note

interest rate sensrtiwtv

The sensmvrty analyses below . have been determlned based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting year. For variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis'is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstandrng at the end of the reporting year
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk rnterna!ly to key management personnel and’ represents management's
assessment of the poss:b!e change in rnterest rates. :

Assumirg that the amount of borrowrngs outstanding at the end of the financial year was
outstanding for the whole year and interest rates increase/decrease instantaneously by 50 basis
points from the end of the financial year, with all other vanables held constant, the interest expense

of the company, ‘which would impact ‘profit before tax and equ:ty would rncrease!decrease by

approxrmately US$4 434 755 (201 4 US$3 595 086)

Forergn cumencz nsk

Forergn currency nsk arises fmm the change in forergn currency exchange rates that may have an

adverse effect on the company in the current reportmg penod and in the future years

The company transacts mainly in Unlted States dollar and Srngapore dollar The company also hold
cash and cash equwa!ents ‘denominated ‘in foreign - cunencies - for - working - capital purposes.
Stgnrf icant portion of the foreign exchange exposures are natura!fy hedged as both trade purchases
and saies are der:omlnated in the above currencras This naturat hedge reduces the fi nancral rmpact

' 'managea”ﬁte ﬁe”comﬁahy “{iges” démiatwe_ﬁnancsa“t rnstruments 1 protect agamst the volatﬁ‘ty

associated with currency transactions in the ordinary course of business.

~ -
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Market risk - cont'd

Forefqn cunencv ﬁsk -~ conf'd -

The companys exposures to forelgn currency risk in equwa!ent US$ based on the information
provided by management are as foilows :

2016 . . - 2015
o o Uss - US$
" Singapore dollar exposure: S -
. Financial'assets and liabilities:

Trade and other receivables ' ' - 563,443 - - 678,261
"~ Gash and cash equ;vaients - . : 206,643 430,552
- Borrowings o S (939,640) ~ {1,319,499)
Trade and other payabtes L . Aoy (94,165)
Net foreign currency exposure (213,1'33) ' ~(304,851)

Sensmwty ana!ys:s for fore:gn cun‘ency risk

The analysas is prepared assumlng the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting

- year was outstanding for the whole. year. A 10% increase or decrease is used when reporting

forergn exchange rate risk internally to key management personne! and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

Al 0% strengthenmg of United States dolfar agalnst the Singapore doilar would increasel (decrease)
profit or loss and equity by the amount shown below:.

2016 2015

uss o uss
S$IUSH ' : RIS
: - strengthen 10% (2015: 10%) : {21 Ny (30485)

' Al 0% weakentng of Un:ted States dolfar agarnst the: Singapore do!lar would have had the equal
_-.but opposite effect on 'the ‘above currencres to the amounts shown above on: the basls that alf
other vanab!es remain constant :

Commodr{zgno'e"nsk e

Commodity pnce rlsk anses frorn the change in the commodity. prices that may have an adverse

effect on the company 's result in the current repomng period and in future penods L

The companys ma;or commodtty is. coal. Coal prices are subject fo ﬂuctuatlons attnbutabfe to

_market supply and demand conditions. The company manages such risk by monltonng the coal

prices and through stnngent purchase process of not acquiring commodity at price ‘above the normal

. ‘range based on historical information avaifable and by not overstocking on any panzcuiar type of

coal. The company use derivative financial instruments to mitigate this' risk. The management
believes that the coal pnce ‘risk is: ‘manageable. No commedity price sensitivity ana!ysrs has been
prepared as the lmpact would be immaterial to the company. '
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
-cont’d

Financial Risk Management Policies and Obiectives — cont'd

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The company's exposure to liquidity risk arses primarily from mismatches of
the maturities of financial assets and Habilities. The company’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.

in the management of the liquidity risk, the company monitors and maintains a level of cash and
bank balances deemed adequate by the management to finance the company's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. At the end of the reporting period, approximately
99% {2015: 95%) of the company’s loans and borrowings will mature in less than one year based
on the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements. The management has built an
appropriate fiquidity risk management framework for the management of the company's short,
medium and fong-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and other faciliies and borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matchmg the maturity profiles of financial
assets and !tabllzt:es

The foliowing tab[e summarises the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabifities at the end of the reporting ‘period based on undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earfier of the confractual date or when the Company is expected to pay. The
tab!e inciudes both interest and principal cash flows.

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Effective
interest Carrying One year or Two to five .
2016 raté p.a. amount less years _ TJotal
: % us$ uss uss Uss
Non-derivative
Financiai liabitities: -
Trade and other
payables . - 640,467,306 640,467,306 - - 640,467,306
Borrowings - 1544 644,852,528 647,341,262 565,094 647,906,356
Total undiscounted C - R } .
- financial liabilities : -1,285,419,834 - 1,287,808,568: 565,094  -1,288,373,662
Contractuat undiscounted cash flows
Carrying Oneyearor . Twotofive =
2015 - amount less : 1ears . Total
S - uUs§ usy o US$ us$
Non-derivative Lo o S '
Financial {iabilities:
Trade and other N T
: ﬁéyabIeé”"_' S - 507,828,499 '507' 828,499 T 507,828,499
Borrowings - . 1542 920, 345,132 . 882 845 407 " 42,204,823 925.050.230

Total undsscounted :

fnancariasiites 1 APEITIB3T T30S, 9U‘o_-' ) .-_425204!82'3 o

AT
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Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Effective : : -
: - interest  Carrying One year or Two to five
. 2016 - - rate p.a. amount less - years Total
% - Uss uUss Uss Uss$
Derivatives.
financial liabilities:
- Net settled o : S '
" commodity swap - 4,155,512 4,155,512 - 4,155,512
- Confractuat undiscounted cash flows
' Effective o o : :
Uinterest Carrying Oneyearor  Two to five
2015 _ . ratep.a. = amount less years Total
_ ' Ya Uss Uss - Uss - uss
Derivatives. B
financial liabifities:
- Net settled : o
commodity swap - 7,098,025 7,098,025 - 7,098,025
-Currency’fonvard oo 245,017 245,017 K 245,017

Itis not expected that the cash flows mc!uded in the maturaty ana!ys:s of the company could oceur
significantly earlier, or at significant dn‘ferent amount.

- (dy Fair vatue of ﬁnancial instrumenf_,s that are carried at fair vaf.ue

o Financiai'aséets and Eiabiiities

'Management consuders that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equavaients amolints due to

imimediate holding company, subsidiaries, refated partles trade and other payables and interest
- 'bearing borrowmgs recorded at amortased cost in the ﬁnancm staternents apprommate their fair
: '.va!ues -

o -Fafrva!ue hfé}arcﬁg" o

_ _The company: ciassnf tes fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
. significance of the mputs used in rnak;ng the measurements The fair’ value h[erarchy has the
foﬂowmg leve!s : .

Level 1. . Quoted pn.ces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 fnputs other than quoted prices 1nc(uded within Levei 1 that are observable for the
.. asset or Itabliity either direcﬂy (ie. as praces) or lndlrect!y {i.e. defived from
prlces}
Level 3: * Inputs for the asset or Ilab:hty that is not based an observab!e market data
{unobservable inputs}.
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The following table shows an analysis of financia! instruments carried at fair value by level of fair
value hierarchy:

2016 Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Us$ - UsS uss us$ Uss
Derivative financial
instruments 4,155,512 - 4,155,512 - 4,155,512
2015 Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totai
Us$ _ uss _ uUss$ Uss uss$
Derivative ﬁnanoial . - .
instuments (7,343,042} e {7,343,042) - (7,343,042)

Determination of fair value

Forward commodity contracts and forward cumency contracts are valued using forward pricing with
market observable inputs. The fair value of the reseflable prepaid commodity price swap is
calculated by reference fo the pricing model defined in Resettable Pre—pard Swap agreement with
the institutional counterparty with’ market observable rnputs S .

During the financiat year ended 31 March 20186, there was no transfer between instruments in Level
1, Levél 2 and Level 3, or vrce versa

The Com_pany does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at end of the reporting period
would significantly be different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

53, cag 'it.a.l Man'agement.-

The primary objectsve of the companys capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy caprtal ratios rn order to support rts busrness and maxrmrse shareho!der
va!ue _ :

In order o marntaln or adjustthe caprtal slructure the company may ad;ust the drwdend payment to
equity holders, issue new shares, return capltal to the equrty holders, and obtarn new borrowrngs or
redeem exastrng borrowrngs :

The company monitors capltal usrng geanng ratlo ‘which is net debt dl\nded by total cap!tal Net
debt is calculated as borrowings, derivative t'nanmal 1nstn.|ments plus trade and other’ payables

" less cash and cash equivalents. Totai capital is calculated as equrty and net debt. The’ companys

_uveraltshategyremamsxmchangedtmngﬁe—yea
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5.3.

" Capital Management — cont'd

- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT AND CAPiTAL MANAGEMENT
- cont’d

2016 2015

uss - Uss
* Trade and other payables. . 641,995,905 585933305
Borrowings. ' 644,952,528 - 920,345,132
Derivative financial instruments ' : Lo s 7,343,042
Less: Cash and cash equwa[ents {119,199,362) - - . (129,364, 148)
‘Netdebt 167,748,071 1,384,257,331
Total equity 910,054,374 820,902,234
Tofal capitat 2077,803,445 - - - 2.205,159,565

 Gearing ratio 56% . 63%

The capital structure of the company’s mainly cansists of equaty and debt and the Company $ overalf

‘sfrategy remains unchanged from 31 March 2016.

The company will cantinue to monitor economic cond:trons related to rts operatsons and will make
adjustments to its capital structure where necessary

The company was in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements (Note 17).

HOLDING COMPANY AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

- The’ company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adani Global Ltd, incorporated in Mauritius. The
ultimate holding company is Adani Enterprises Ltd, a company incorporated in india. - - '

' RELATED PARTY TRANSACTiONS- -

“Many of the company ‘s fransactions and: arrangements are befween members of the ultimate holding

company and the effects of these on the basis determ:ned between the parties are reflected in these

' i nanc;a! statements

ln addition to the inforration- dasclosed elsewhere in the ﬁnanmal statements the following
fransactions and arrangements ‘took p!ace between the company and re!ated parties took piaoe at

“ferms agreed between the partles dunng the financial year.

2 The refated party baiances are unsecured _repayable on demand and interest free uniess otherwise

slated
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - cont'd

Significant related party transactions:

At 31.3.2016

~

2016 2015
uUss us$
Sales to:
- ultimate holding company 416,323,058 1,137,526,83
- related companies 961,480,423 942,324 682
Purchases from
- related companies - 361,855,608 116,772,206
Ocean freight, despatch/ demurrage charges from
- related companies 1,404,731 {113,246)
- subsidiaries 168,367,939 137,175,115
Professional fees to
- related companies 1,574,958 361,913
- subsidiaries - 757,264
Salary reimbursement from subsidiary - 6,500
Key management personnel compensation: _
- Short-term employee benefits ' 1,760,264 1,851,793
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Computer & Furniture
Office Equipment & Fittings Total
us$ ‘Uss - uss
Cost
At1.42014 253,745 278,627 532,372
Additions 10,982 - 10,982
At 31.3.2015 264,727 278,627 543,354
Additions 39,979 82,399 122,378
At 31.3.2016 304,706 361,026 - 665,732
Accumulated depreciation S :
At1.42014 _ ' 192,890 159,589 352,479
Charged for the year 34758 74,933 109,691
At31.3.2015 227,648 234522 462,170
Charged for the year 31,272 69,989 101,261
At 31.3.2016 258,920 - 304,511 563,431
Net carrvihq amount
ATSTS2015 37075 44105 81184
45,786 56,515 102,301
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8. PLANT AND EQUEPMENT cont’d

During the year, the company carr:ed out a review of the recoverabie amount of ail plant and
- equipment. As' a result; there were no allowances for impairment or revisions to- the useful fives
- required for piantand equipment. .

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Leasehold Properties
. uss
. Cost Cost _ RSO
At 31.3. 2015 and 2016 4,826,852
Accumuiated degreciatlon.
At 31.3.2014 464,410
C_ha'rg_t_é_d‘ fo_r t_he.year- E : _ - ' : - - 80,608
© At'31.3.2015 ' o ' 545,018
Q_harged f_or the year 80,608
At 31.3.2016 - ' 625,626
- Net carrying amount
At 31.3.2015 : o ' 4,281,834
At31.3.2016 ' 4,201,226
" Details of investment propeities are as foliows:
2016 015
Cost Fair Vaiue Cost -~ . . Fair Value
Uss uss us$ Uss
Leasehold property | situated . .
* at 10 Anson Road #34-16,
Internationai Plaza, .
Sing'apcire 079903 (21 7sq m) _ 2,592,802 2,978,000 2,592 802 3,423,000
B Leasehoid property [i SItuated '
- at 10 Anson Road #34-15; -
Internationial Plaza, '
Singapore 079903 (175 5q my 2,234,050 2 532 000 2, 234 050 .- 2,840 000

|nvestment propertles were leased to th|rd partres under operattng lease during the financial year
{Note 26) : .
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9.

10

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - cont'd

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income;

2016 2015
uss Us$
Rental income 285,307 205740
Direct operating expenses arising from
investing property
Property tax _ {26,036) (24,181)
Depreciation {80,608) (80,608)

As at 31 March 2016, the company has mortgaged its investment properties and assigned the rental
proceeds, towards settlernent of property loans {Note 17).

The fair value of the company's invesiment properties at the end of the reporting period have been
determined on the basis of valuation carried out by the management based on the ransacted prices
near the end of the reporting period in the location and category of the properties being valued.

During the year, the company camied out a review of the recoverable amount of investment

properties. As a resulf, there were no allowances for impaiment reqUIred for the investment
properties.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2016 2015
_ _ uss ' us$
Unquoted equity investments at cost
At beginning of financial year C 43,725,986 42 472 783
Additions 10,766 1,253,203
Atend of financial year .~ 43,736,752 43,725,986
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
o . Country of
Name of the - ' S incorporation-and -
subsidiary Principal activities place of business - Equity holding
- o 2018 2015
% %
PT Adani Global Ekport & import and _ Indonesia 85 95
' ' mine supporting activity L
PT Adani Global Coal Export & import and "~ Indonesia - 95 95
Trading mine '5upporting activity
AdaﬂLM}MgﬂMm&Jmpmad Ausiraiia 109 100

tmiine SUppﬁml 16} auuvny
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10'..

11,

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — cont'd

. _ Country of .
Name of the ' _ incorporation and
_ subsidiary . Principal activities place of business . Eguity holding
o ' R, PR - 2018 2015
Yo %
Adani Minerals Pty Lid ~ Export & import and Australia - 90 90
mine supporting activity o
Adani Shipping Pte Chartering and owning of .- - - Singapore: - - 100 100
Lid : ships, barges and boats '
Adani North America " Business devetoprnent United States . . 100 -
Inc. R and mine supporting o :
' activity
“Adani infrastructure - Export & import and Australia 100 -
© Pty Lid . "~ mine supporting activity :

One set of consolidated ﬁnancial.statements of the company and its subsidiaries are not prepared as

- the company itself is ‘a wholly: owned' subsidiary of another corporation. The ultimate holding

company, Adani Enterprises Lid prepares consolidated financial statements which are available for
public use. The registered office of Adani Enterprises Ltd is Adam House, Nr Mlthakhah Circle,

' Navrangpura Ahmedabad 380 009 Gujarat, !nd;a

As at the end of the repomng peried, the company carried out a review on the recoverabie amount of

its investment in:subsidiaries. The review revealed no impaitment in value required. The recoverable
amount of the relevant investment in each subsidiary has been determined on the: basis of its net

_ . assels value at the end of the reporting period as in the opinion of the management of the company,
- the net assets va!ues of these subs:d:ar:es reasonably approx:mate the fair values less cosls to sell.

uss: ' o Uss
Unquoted edu:it'y.inv'e'st'ment:s at cost ' 3,800,000 3,800,000

The company has. 50% interest in’ the jointly controlied entity, Adanr Wilmat Pte Ltd.. The joint
venture is incorporated in Singapore and the principal activities of the joint venture are to carry on

. busaness of trad:ng fn vanous types of pu!ses grams and other agncuiturai commochtles

' As stated in Note 10 to the finahcial statements the ultimate ho[ding company- prepares the

conso!tdated financial - statements: . Such’ financial - statemients - are” ‘availakile™ for public use.

' Accordingty, the proporhonate consolldation or the equity accountmg has not been adopted for the

|nterest in ;oani venture !n lhe company 'S ﬁnancaa! statements

" As atthe end of the repomng penod the company camed out a review on the recoverable amount of
"~ its inferestin ;omtventure The review reveated no ampa:rment in value requrred

~
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12. INVENTORIES
2016 2015
Us$ uss
Goods in transit 15,037,265 39,607,943
Goods-in-transit refers to inventories that have been shipped by the supplier, but not yet been
received by the customer as at 31 March 2018.
Cost of inventories recognised as an expenses and include in “cost of goods sold® amounts to
US$3,347,122,633 (2015: US$3,438,577 612).
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
Uss Uss$
Trade receivables:
- uftimate holding company (Note 8) 290,966,647 508,570,320
- related companies (Note 7) 415,634,173 424,344 630
- {hird parties 318,829,948 532,075,471
1,025,430,768 1,464,990,421
(24,634) © (123,425)
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Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables: _
Advances to:

1,025,406,134

142,986,813

1,464,866,996

- retated companies (Note 7) _ 23,182,082
- third parties 31,189,650 19,788,198
Commodity receivables - 2,480,988 -
GST receivables 476,473 583,362
Loan to employees 100,520 - 120,906
Interest receivables - 2,104,001 4,429,814
Margin money for commodity - - 1,229,000
Other receivables — related companies (Note 7) - 517,990
Other receivables - third partses 2,196 -
Loan to: - :
- subsidiaries {Note 10) 608,212,438 382,617,438
- third parties - 187,128,908 223,010,647
2,010,088,119

(a) - Trade recewabies

2,120,346,433

Trade recervab!es are non—znterest bearrng except related companles and the credlt penods are
within 30 to" 360 days’ (2015: 30 to 360 days’) terms. They are recognised at their originat
invoice amounts, which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The company does not
" hold any collateral over these balances as these- receivables are mainly arising by customers
that have a good . record with the .company.. Based on the historical default rates the company
belleves that no further prowsron is requrred in excess of the alEowances for the doubﬁui debts

""""'""""'"""”""'W""_"""'" " B “"’l‘ﬂe wmpany s 'COTTCETT‘:I’EUUTI '”Df' h'ade recewabies '(CTEﬂit TISk) WTﬂ'I “fOUI" CUUHtET par[y' ’

(2015; . two "counter - parties) amounting . to . approximately US$701; 872 185 (2015
US$750,709 890) which represent 68% (2015: 51%) of trade receivables. -
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13.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — cont'd

(b} Trade receivables that are discounted ..

- Inciuded in trade receivables, a sum. of US$386,779,835 (2015: US$524,948,256), which were

~-discounted to. banks which had not matured. and" bears. interest rate ranging’ from 1.30% to
3.37% above the prime plus rate of bank’s cost of funds. Interest for the period between the date

- of bills discotnting ‘of the receivables on full recourse basls wuth c:ompamg,r and the agreed date
of paymentis recorded on an accrual basis. .

~ Advances {o suppliers represent the_ amount of money advanced by the company to the suppliers as
"~ advance payment fbr’consignment from the supp!iers fo re—selt such products fo the customers.

~In determln;ng the recoverability of other receivables, the company considers any change in the

credit quality of the other receivable from the date credit was initially grented up to the reportang date.
The other recewabies are unsecured, mterest«free and repayabie on demand

' Management’ nas assessed- the credit worthiness of the other debtdrs including ulimate holding

company, subsidiary and refated companies and considers that no aliowance for impairment of other
receivabies is necessary as there were no recent hlstory of default in respect of these debtors.

Loan to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are repayabie on demand.

Loan to third parties are interest bearing at LIBOR plus margin.

Aging of frade receivables at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2015
uss$. - uss
' Not past due and not impaired 988,200,666' 1,378,880,210
Past due but not impaired 37,205,468 85,986,786
1,025,406,134 1,464,866,996
Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired.
2018 2015
o - Uss uss
- Lesser than 30 days 12,598,673 70,689,348
. 31to60days. . . 1,986,201 L 1,244.259
61to90days : - 4,059,349 - 2,284,064

- More than 91 days 18,561,245 11,769,115

37,205,468 _ 85,086,786
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13.

14,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - cont'd

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to trade receivabies that are in significant financial difficulties and have defauited on payments.

The company's trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the
movements of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

2016 2015
us$ uss
At beginning of the year 123,425 186,024
Bad debts recovery durng the year (6,478} -
Provision during the year 3,077 -
Written off dunng the year {95,390} {62,599)
Atend of the year | 24,634 123,425

Trade and ofher receivables are denominated in following currencies:

2016 o 2015
Us$ uUs$
British pound 125,357 .
tndian rupee . 16,602 -
Singapore doltar 590,881 737,930
United States dollar 2,009,355,279 - 2,119,608,503
2,010,088,119 2,120,346,433
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
2016 2015
uss . uss
~ Deposits 470,470 236,483
F’repayments 2,110 505 3,490,921
2,580,875 - 3,727,404

The company’ s management considers that no allowances for !mpatrment of other current assets are
nec:essary as {here was no rec:ent hlstory of default in respect of these’ assets :
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15.

180

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2015
_US$ uUss
Bank balances . . 10,039,947 36,881,364
_Fixe_d deposits . - _ 109,159,415 92,482,784
119,199,362 129,364,148
Less:
Restricted deposits {109,159,415) {92,482 784)
Cash and cash equwafents as per the statement of cash
:.36,881,364

flows 10,039,947

-Cash and cash: equwalents comprise cash at banks held by the company and shori-term bank

deposits with an_original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents carried in the

. - statement of financial posmon are classified and accounted for as Ioans and receivables under FRS
-39 . .

Fixed deposits are made for varying periods between 14 days to 571 days (2015: 30 days to 365

days) depending upon the immediate cash requirements of the company. The fixed deposits bear

' average’ effective interest rate of 0.35%-2.46% (201 5: 0,20%-1.38%) per annurm.

Fixed depos:ts lnclude _margin money deposrts held with the banks to operate letters of credit with the

of cash flows

~ Cash and' cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

- banks (Note 17). As this amount is not available for use by the company other than its intended
" purposes, it has been excluded from the eash and cash equwalents for the purpose of the statement

2016 - 2015
USs$ uss$
Singapore dolfar - -~ 206,643 : 430,552
" United States'd'_oll_al‘ o 118,992,719 128,933,596
119,199,362 . - . 129,364,148
© SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015 2016 2015
o Number of ordinary shares ©uss uss
Essued and gaid up _ _
_ 'Ord!nary shares N 43,117,530 43,117,530 27,600,000 27,600,000

The ord:nary shares which have no par vaiue carry a right to dividend as and when declared by the

company.
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17. BORROWINGS

2016 2015
uss$ Us$

Long term bank foans 41,772,973 132,152,832

Working capital loans 603,179,555 788,192,300

644,952,528 820,345,132
2016 2015
uss uss$

Long term bank loans
Termlcani 521,689 728,985
Term loan i 417,951 590,514
Term loan ii 20,833,333 70,833,333
Term loan iv 20,000,000 -60,000,000

Totat long term bank loans 41,772,973 132,152,832

Less: Cument portion -

Term foan i -{190,079) {199,266)
Term foan i {168,020) (175,224)
Term loan i {20,833,333) * '{40,000,000)
Term loan iv _ {20,000,000) {50,000,000)

Total cumrent portion {41,191,432) {90,374,490)

Total non—current_pqrtion 581,541 41,778,342

Working capital loans
Trust receipts, freight and invoice financing 111,399,720 208,244,044
Trade bills discounting 386,779,835 524,948,256
Credit facilities .- 105,000,000 55,000,000

L 603,179,555 788,192,300

Represented as: -

Currént portion: 41,181,432 80,374,490
Long term bank foans 603,179,555 788,192,300
Working capital loans 644,370,987 878,566,790

Non—curren't portion:

Long term b’énk loans 581,541 41,778,342
 Total borrowings 644,952,528 . . 920,345,132
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17.

BORROWINGS — cont'd

~ Long term bank loans

a) Term ioan i&i u

: The company obtalned two term Ioans from Standard Chartered Bank to ﬁnance the acquisition

of the investment properties: srtuated at 10 Anson’ Road #34-15 & #34-16; Intérational Plaza,

- - Singapore on: 3 June 2008. The loans bear interest at the rate of 2% {2015: 2% per annum

above 3 Months Singapore Inter Bank Offer Rare ("SIBOR"Yy and the loans are repayable over a

' perrod of 10 ten years. The repayments commence from 15'August 2008 and will continue until

by

15 August 2018.The loans are secured by first Iegal mortgage over. the anvestment propertles of
the company {Note 9).

-Term toan iff-

The company obtained a term Ioan amounting to US$250,000,000 from ICIC bank, Singapore
branch on 12 August 2011. The foan bears interest at the rate of 4.1% (2015 4.03%) per annum

" (Margin on 3.80 % above London Inter Bank Offer Rate ("LIBOR")). The Ioan is repayable over

c)

a period 5 years. The repayments commence fror'n 12 September 2011 and will contlnue unti

12 August 2016

Terrn Ioan v

:The company. entered into- a facility  arrangement: cafled Resettable Pre-paid Swap with

Standard’ Chartered Bank on 30 Juhe 2011 refererice to API#4 coal price. The cap price of
APH#4 coal is set at US$80MT. During the term of the swap, if the reference swap price is below
US$80/MT, SCB pre-pays to the company a US$ amount equal: to notionat quantity per
calculation period at hedging swap price on the relevant prepaid amount seftlement date and
the company repays a US$ amount equal to notional quantity per calculation period at floating
price plus commadity linked liquidity charge. if the reference swap price is greater than or equal
to US$BO/MT, SCB pre-pays: to the company a US$ amount equal to notional quantity per
calculation: period at cap price on the relevant prepaid amount seftiement date and the
company repays a US$ amount equal to notronal quantlty per calculation penod at cap price
ptus commodlty Emked liquidity charge

“The caIcufatton penods are reset semi-annually, starting from 1 Juiy 2011 to 30 June 2016. The
| swap covers a notional volume of 2.5 million MT. The reference swap prices at the calculafion

periods during the current fi nanciai year and at Ihe end of the reportlng period are greater than

B USSBOMT.

a)

 Working capital loans

Trust receipts, fraight and invoice financing

The company obtained the trust recelpts freight and invoice financing from various banks and
they bear interest ranging from 1 .70% to 3.43 % per annum and repayable within 7 days to 180
days..- .
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17.

BORROWINGS ~ cont'd

Working capital loans — cont'd

b} Trade bills discounting

The company obtained the bill discounting facilities from various banks. The loans arise from
foreign bills discounted, which are granted with nght of recourse to the banks and are
recognised as coliateralised borrowing in the financial statements until the related assets are
derecognised. The average maturity of the bills are 60 to 180 days from the invoices date and
bear interest rate ranging from 1.73% to 4.36% {2015: 1.73% to 4.36%) per annum. interest for
the period between the date of discounting the bills and the agreed date of payment is

recognised on an accrual basis.

¢} Credit facilities

The company obtained the credit facilities from various banks which bears interest at the rate

ranging from 1.5% to 2 75% per annum and repayable within 32 days to 180 days

The fair values of the borrowmgs are not significantly dtfferent from their carrying amounts based

on discounting expected future cash flows at market lending rates of an equwalent instrument at

the end of the reporting period.

Banking borrowings are secured by cash coflaterals, charge on specific receivables financed by

banks and collection account held with banks.

The above borrowings are subject to loan covenants pertaining to net worth and certain financial

ratios as enumerated In the credit facility agreements with the respective financial institutions.

The _compény regularly monitors its compliance with the financial covenants.

Borrowings are denominated in the foEIowing currencies:

2016
uss -
Singapore dollar 939,640

2015
uss

1,319,499
819,025,633

United S_tates doilar _ 644,012,888

644,952,528

920,345,132
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015
. ‘Uss T UsSS
Trade payables:
- third parties : 450,484,118 457,387,577
- sUbsidiary (Note: 10} 16,332,516 9,292,000
" - related companies (Note 7) 141,963,756 3,510,840
608,780,390 " 470,190,507
Advances from customers _ 1,528,599 78,104,806
Deposit received .. 44873 43,893
Accrued expenses 14,279,356 18,653,565
Other payables -
-~ third parties o 8,713,028 7,795,198
- refated companies (Note 7) - 3,8M
- subsidiary (Note 10) 6,611,955 - - 6,872,704
interest payables -~ - 2,037,704 2,842,804
Commodity payables- ~ - 1,225,957
641,995,905 - - 585,933,305

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 days (2015 30 to 60
- days) and import bills acceptance up to 180 days. Trade payabies are principally comprising
amounts outstandrng for trade purchases

Other payabfes fo subsad:ary are unsecured interest-free and repayab!e on demand

: Advances from customers refer to advance money placed by {he customers in connectron with future
safe of goods .

Trade and or.her payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2016 .. 2015

. uUs$ ) S USE
United States dolfar 641,924,888 585,839,140
' Singapore dollar - . 71,017 - G4.165

641,995,905 585933305
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2016

=3

|

Commodity swaps
Purchases
Sales

Net position

L]

015

Commodity swaps
Purchases -
Sales _

Currency Derivatives
Purchases .
Sales

Net position

Contractuai

Notional value

Us$

141,383,763
30,940,900

Contractual

Notional value

uss

63,783,650
35,294,725

24,686,568
1,462,821

Assets/{Liabilities)
uss

4,678,963
(523,450)

4,155,513

Assetsi(Liabilities)
Uss

{11,374,675)
4,276,650

(256,720)
11,703

(7,343,042)

The company has entered into commadity and currency denvatlves to manage its exposure to price

risk and forex risk.

The fair value of the derivatives is determined based on mark-to-market valuation provided by the
bank as at end of reporting period. The company does not designate its derivative -confract as
hedging instrument and the fair value gainfloss of US%$4,155,543 (2015 US$7 343 042) has been

recognised in the proﬁt and loss statement,

Derivative financial instrument is denominated in United States dollars, the functional currency of

the company.

REVENUE

Revenue represents invoiced value of goods sold and deEwered exchdlng goods and serwce tax, net

returns trade dtscounts and allowances.’
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21.. - OTHERINCOME :
- 2016 2015

_ - uss o us$
- Operating income: S o
- bad debts recovery S 6,479 -
- Foreign currerncy exchange adjustment galn . 23,507 -
- interest income from financiat institutions’ 903,730 778,041
- interest income fror third parties 6,722,483 16,149,682
_ 7,656,199 16,925,723
: Non-operating income: S _ Co
- Insurance claim received - . S0 T78001 0 : -
- renfal income from investment pmperty . 285,307 : 285,740
- sundry balances written back 493,149 803,627
- wage credit scheme: - S 491
- other miscelfaneous income 4,229 1,709
860,686 1,091,567
8,516,885 18,017,290

The Wage Credit Scheme (“WCS") was introduced in 2014 as pan ofa three—year Transat;on Support
- Package for Businesses. The objective of the WCS is to help the companies cope with the rising
- wage costs and encourage companies to free up resources and to make irivestmeént in productlwty
* investments and share the productivity gains with their employees. The Government wili co-fund 40%
of the wage increase given to Singaporean employees eaming a gross monthly wage of $$4,000 and
below. WCS is computed based on monthly CPF contribution made by. the employer for their

- employees for the qualifying years of 2014, 2014 and 2015.

22" FINANCE COSTS

2016 2015

uss - Us$
Interest on foans _ 5,939,294 10,444,557
Interest on bilf discounting and trust receipt 19,650,821 . 13,364,783
Bank charges and commission - - 4,502,361 2813144
" LUCcharges - . 3,941,397 .- 2,535678
' Finance charges. - 1,150,566 3,196,347

35184439 32,354,509
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23.

. Movement in income tax payables

INCOME TAX
2016 2015
Us$ uss
Current tax:
Provision for current year 5,000,000 10,000,000
{Over)/under provision of income tax in prior years {411,219) 168,485
4,588,781 10,168,485

Reconcifiation belween income tax expenses and accounting profit

The income tax expenses varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the
Singapore income tax rate of 17% and concessionary rate of 5% {2015: 17% and 5%} to profit before
income tax as a resutt of the following differences; -

2016 2015
Us$ uss
Profit before income tax 93,740,921 180,680,350
Income tax expense calculated at 17% 15,935,957 30,715,659
Tax effects of: '
- GTP tax concessions . {10,949,003) - {20,855,179)
- non-deductible items 32,351 o 158,443
- partial tax exemptions -{19,305) (18,923)
o . 5,000,000 10,000,000
{Over)funder provision of income tax in prior years {219 168,485
4588781 10,168,485

On 1 April 2013, the company quatlified under the Global Trader Programme for a 5% concessionary
rate of tax on income approved under the Global Trading Program Scheme. The concessionary rate
of income tax by virtue of Section 43P of the Singapore Income Tax Act (Cap.134) is available for a
period of 5 years with effect from 1 April 2013, with a possible extension for further periods.

The non-qualifying income under GTP is taxed under the standard Singapore income Tax rate of
17% (2015:17%).

2016 . 2015

uss. Us$
Balance at beginning of year 10,411,219 11,200,000
Income tax paid o ' ) '(9',10_1,'295_) {10,957,266}
Income tax expenses - " 4,588,781 10,168,485

Balance at end of year 5,898,705 10,411,219
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24. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

b Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

- 2016 _ 2015
uss - _ uss
- Employee benefit expenses (including drrectors A : :
emolumenis) 5,684,33G - - . 5,666,643
Cast of defined contnbution plans included in employee _
benefits : : 69,795 90,302
Legal and professional fees 4,305,477 2,833,849
- Bad debis expenses - 1,913,004 ' -
" Provision for doubtful debts . ' 3078 -
25. - - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: : :
2018 2015
s - USS
Financiai support given to those subsidiaries having:
- deficiencies in shareholders’ funds 7,419,243 . 4,851,516
- current liabilities in excess of current assets* 66,925,864 65,683,068

*Current irabzlmes in excess of current assets include balances due to Adan: Globa! Pte Ltd
amounting o US$ 60,444,707

26. COMMITMENTS

2018 2015

us$ - us$
Performance guarantee - 112,693,194 93,635,798
Letters Df Cl'ed!t : 126' 353 584 147,329,062
29, 546 778 _-3 240,964,860

{ay  The company has given a guarantee foits subsrdrary, PT Adani Global !ndonesra fora medrum term
i loan from PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC Bank™) for total sanction amount of US$8.087
_ milfion for financing of the’ purchase of one Joy Mining Contiriuoiis Miner with related squipment.” At

end of the reporting penod the subsidiary has an outstandmg f{abzhty of US$:1.218 million {2015:

US$1.705 m;!lion) with the abiové financial institution. No recognition for the fair value of the financial

“guarantee’is made in the financial statements, as the company consrders that is more likely that no
: amount wrli be payable under {he: arrangement -
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27.

28,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The company as lessor

2016 2015
USs$ uUss$
Minimum lease receipts under operating lease
recognised as an income in the year 285,307 285,740

As at the end of the reporting period, future minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases is as follows:

2016 2015

uss uss
Within one year 190,897 305,319
In the second to fifth years inclusive - 202,317
190,897 507,636

The company rents out its investment property fo a non-related party under operating lease (Note 9).

The company as {essee

2016 : 2015
uss uss
Minimum [ease payments under operating lease . _
recognised as an expense in the year 443,032 442 699

As at the end of the reporting penod. the commitments in res'pect of operating lease were as follows:

2016 2015
uss3 uss$
Within one year . 503,540 154,466
In the second to fifth years inclusive ' 671,387 -
1,174,927 Co 154 466

The company has _o'perating lease agreement for staff accommodation. Lease terms do not contain
restrictions on the company’s activities conceming dividends, additional debts or further leasing.

OTHER MATTERS

1) T’he company is a defendant isa !aw suit (Su:t 431 of. 2015) in. the Smgapore High Court

broughit about’ by a Sparkllng Commodities Pte Ltd, {the plaintiff), where the plaintiff is alleging
that the company - ‘had ot ‘abided by an agreement between the’ plamtlff and the: company-in
relation to trade documents. The' p!aintlff also a!leges malfeasance - by the company into’ the
business of the’ platntuf’f causing loss to the plaintlff's business. The plaanttff is claiming a sum of
us$ 2, 892,793. The company has refuted the clalms as groundless and is defendmg ttse[f in
the Smgapore High Court. . _

Based on the oplnton B The company s tegal counsel the dlrectors of the company beileve _
there are strong merits in the company's claim and the ultimate outcome of the claim would not
materially harm the company’s financial position.
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28.

29

OTHER MAﬂERs-—. cont'd

2)

in 2005 the company entered in to sales contract with a customer, SPS Steel & Power Ltd
("SPS"} a company incorporated in India for supply of 250,000 Metric fonnes of Stearn — Coal
{Mon —coking) in bulk. Accordingiy, on 28 September 2005 the company supplied 54,548 Metric
Tonnes of coal fo SPS, which SPS refuted on the grounds of quality of coal: supplied: fo them

and demand the compary pay Rs 34,659,240 as compensation for diffefence in quality of coal

supphed However; the’ company refuted the claim. from SPS and stated. that the company
supplied the coal in accordance with the specification as agreed in the sales contract SPS
reiterated its stand and refused to accept the detlvery of balance 195,452 Metrlc Tonnes of coat

- from the company

The company- rnvoked_ the arbitration consequently the dispdte‘ was. referred- to an Arbitration
Tribunal and the company submitied its statement of claim for a total sum of Rs 366,915,847

'(equwatent to approximately US$ 5,533,746} for quantum of price difference, loss on account of

. - distress with interest thereon computed at the rate of 18% per annum for the said amount from

15 November 2005 until the date of payment together with legal cost. SPS also submitted its

~ counter claim for a total sum of Rs 34,659,240 (equivalent to approximately US$.522,723) for

quantum of loss on poor quality. of coal supplied and with interest thereon ‘computed at the rate
of 18% per annum from 29 September 2005 trit the date of payment together wrth Eegai costs

The arbrtratron proceed:ngs were: halted due to one of the presrdang arbrtrators wrthdraw:ng
himself from. the arbitral proceedings, while the arbifration reached the final stage of hearing of
final arguments The Supreme Court of india appointed a presrdrng arbitrator upon the request
of the. company: ‘and SPS to resume the fribunal. A preirmmary meeting was held: in the
arbitration tribunai on- 3. May 2016 to schedule a date for hearing. of. final arguments of the
company on5 September 2016 and on 22 23and 24 September 2016 tentahve!y for SPS.

Based on the opin:on of the company s legal counse! the d;rectors of. the company be[reve

' there are strong merits in the company's claim and the ultimate outcome of the claim would not

matena!ty harm the company 's f' nancial position.

Itis premature to make determ[nataon whether the claim can be regarded as a contingent
liability and, therefore no provision has been made in the financial statements. The related

‘effects of this arbitration award inciuding legal costs, if any, will be recognised in the financial

- statements of the future period when the eventual outcome is determined.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

.No :tems transactions or events of material and unusual nature has arisen in the rntervat between
"'the end of the reporttng period and ‘the date of this report which is i!kely to affect substantially the
results of operat:ons of the com pany for the succeeding financial year. .



ADANI GLOBAL PTE LTD

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Sales
Less: Cost of goods sold

Opening inventories
Purchases
Freight & matenal handling

Less: Closing inventories

Gross profit

Add: Other income
Operating income
‘Bad debts recovery
Foreéign currency exchange adjustment gain
Interest income from financial institutions
interest income from third parties
Non-operating income -
{nsurance claim received
Rental income from investment property
Sundry balances written back '
Wage credit scheme™
Other miscellaneous receipts

Less: Operating expenses
- Schedule ‘A’
Non-operating expenses
-Financecost .~

Profit before income tax

2016 2015
US$ USs
3,485,238,954 3,648,449,037

39,607,943 7,366,240
2,823,639,215 2,999,892 591
498,712,739 470,926,724
3,362,159,898 3,478,185 555
(15,037,265) | (39.607,943)

{3.438,577.612)

(3,347,122,633)

138,116,321 209,871,425
6,479 -
23,507 -
903,730 - 776,041
6,722,483 16,149,682
78,001 -
285,307 285,740
493,149 803,627
. : 491
4,229 . 1,709
8,516,885 18,017,290
146,633,206 227,888,715
51,741,718 44.012,018
1,150,566 3,196,347
(5.2,892,285) - . {47,208,365)

93,740,921

180,680,350 -
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2016 2015
uss Uss
Marketing and distribution expenses
Brokerage and commission ' 2,991,498 2,452,028
Business promotion expenses 20,844 125,027
Enterfainment expenses 53,929 52,892
Insurdnce ' 672,525 1,345,094
Administrative expenses '
Auditors’ remuneration 65,000 50,000
Communication 103,808 69,111
Directors remuneration 1,750,018 1,848,478
Directors CPF 10,246 3,315
Donations - 10,647 -
Electricity expenses : 23,618 24,767
Inisirance 2,758 2,183
Legat and Professional fees 4,305,477 2,833,849
Office expenses _ 401,345 116,168
Postage and courier 22,802 15,159
Printing and stationery 29,630 21,760
Property tax ' - 26,036 24,181
Repairs and mainfenance " 86,540 42 367
Rental of office building 467,316 409,374
Rental for staff accommodation 92,145 73,713
Subscription & membership fee 68,174 122,941
Staff salaries 3,397,064 3,590,837
Staff CPF 59,549 86,987
- Staff medical and welfare expenses : 375,308 137,026
Travelling expenses 573,618 376,636
Finance cosis '
Interest on loans : _ 5,939,294 10,444,557
interest on bill discounting and trust receipt: 18,108,748 12,957,959
Bank charges and commission 4,502,361 2,813,144
L/C charges 3,941,397 2,535,678
Other interest 1,542,073 406,824
Other expenses o
Bad debis expenses : 1,913,004
Depreciation of property, plant and equapment 101,261 109,691
Depreciation of investment property - 80,608 ' 80,608
Foreign exchange adjustment loss . B39,664
Provision for doubtful debts : ' - 3,078 -

51,741,719 ' 44,012,018







